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NEWS and NOTES 
This department furnishes information concerning institutions, organizations, 

and individuals engaged in work on leprosy and other mycobacterial diseases, 
and makes note of scientific meetings and other matters of interest . 

Ninth International Leprosy Congress London, 
16-21 September 1968 

Plans are well advanced for the Con­
gress, despite the inevitable setbacks and 
difficulties. 

Abstracts are pouring in, but many au­
thors have sent one copy ( instead of four ) 
and have failed to respect the limit of 200 
words, or the dead-line (31 March ). 

Authors of papers will have been notified 

whether or not their papers have been 
accepted for reading in full or reading by 
title only. 

Discussants will be chosen by the respec­
tive Chairmen of sessions from among au­
thors of proffered papers and from the 
floor.- STANLEY G. BHowNE, Secretary­
General, N inth International Leprosy Con­
gress. 

NEWS ITEMS 
United Kingdom. Publications of The 

Leprosy Mission. The Leprosy Mission is­
sued three new films in 1967 depicting 
programs of leprosy control in Australia, 
Korea and India. The Mission also spon­
sored publication of "The Flowering Wil­
derness" by the Rev. W. H. Russell , which 
presents the story of the growth and de­
velopment of the Faizabad Leprosy Home 
and Hospital in India, which has admitted 
more than 30,000 patients in its 25-year 
history. 

Spain. Officers of Spanish Academy of 
Dermatology and Syphilography. The 
Academia Espanola de Dermatologia y 
Sifiliographia announces the recent election 
of officers, including the following: Pres­
ident, Luis Alvarez Lovell; Vice-President, 
Felix Contreras Duenas; Secretary-General, 
Julio Rodriguez Puchol; Chief Editor, Joa­
quin Soto Molo; Treasurer, Ramon Moran 
Lopez. 

Australia. Leprosy control. Notifications 
of ncw cases of leprosy in Australia over 
the last 16 years indicate that the problem 
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of control is confined largely to the 
northern regions of the continent. In 
Queensland the disease appears to be com­
ing slowly under control, but in the 
Northern Territory and Western Australia 
the position is uncertain. In the latter 
regions the disease is found most frequent­
ly in aborigines, but in Queensland it has 
been spread without selection among peo­
ple of all racial groups. Although trends in 
the detection of new cases have fluctuated 
since 1951, the reported incidence in the 
most recent years has been relatively low. 
On 31 December 1966, 1,557 living persons 
with leprosy were registered. Progress in 
detection, isolation, follow-up, treatment, 
prophylaxis and education is described in a 
report by members of a Tropical Medicine 
and Health Committee, published in The 
Med ical Jot/mal of Australia, 30 December 
1967. 

United States. New Medical Officer ill 
Charge at Carville, La. Dr. John R. Traut­
man, former Chief of the Clinical Branch at 
Carville, and more recently Deputy Medi­
cal Officer in Charge of the U.S. Public 
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Health Service Hospital in San Francisco, 
has succeeded Dr. Merlin L. Brubaker as 
Medical Officer in Charge of the hospital. 

M emorial ft/lld for Stanley Stein. A fund 
honoring the memory of the late Stanley 
Stein, founder and editor of the Carville 
Star, who died in the Public Health Service 
Hospital , 18 December 1967 (see Obituary 
page 234) has been set up by The Star, 
with members of The Star's editorial board, 
and Louis Boudreau as chairman, in charge 
of the fund. 

,;Vorld Leprosy Day. At ceremonies inci­
dent to observance of World Leprosy Day 
in New York City, 25 January 1968, consid­
eration was given to reports of a world­
wide rise in leprosy, including an increase 
in the prevalence in the United States. 

Hawaii. New facilities for treatmel1t of 
leprosy. A ne\v facility for the treatment of 
leprosy patients is in the course of prepara­
tion on the grounds of the State Hospital in 
Kaneohe, Hawaii. It is expected to open in 
1970. 

Trinidad and Tobago. Leprosy week. 
Public meetings and daily TV and radio 
broadcasts, sponsored by the Trinidad and 
Tobago Leprosy Relief Association, marked 
the observance of Leprosy Week, 28 De­
cember 1967 to 4 January 1968. Attention 
was called to the successful reintegration of 
250 form er leprosy patients, with arrested 
disease, into the economic life of their 
communi ties. It is believed that there are 
about 1,200 cases of leprosy in Trinidad 
and Tobago; 256 are in the Chacachacare 
Hospital. (From News from ALM, January 
1968 ) 

Brazil. Brazilian Dermatological Soci­
ety. Prof. Ruy N. Miranda has been elected 
President and Dr. Jose R. Loivos, General 
Secretary, of the Brazilian Dermatological 
Society for the year 1968. Th new Board 
of the Society will have the task of organiz-' 
ing the 25th Annual Meeting of Brazilian 
Dermatologists in Curitiha, Parana, Brazil, 
in November 1968. 

SubstitutiOl1S for "leprosy." Prof. A. Rot­
berg, Director of the Department of Sani­
tary Dermatology (formerly Leprosy 

Prophylaxis Department ) of Sao Paulo, 
Brazil, was authorized by the Secretary of 
Health of the State to substitute "hansen i­
asis" for "leprosy" in all official correspon­
dence and documents. A small glossary 
eliminating the word "leper" was put to 
use, with deRnition of "hanseniolgoy," "han­
senioid," "mitsudin ," etc. InRltrations and 
nodules "V" (for Virchow) will be used 
whenever possible. (See pp. 227-229) 

India. Social research in leprosy. At a 
seminar held 28 November to 16 December 
1967, in Wardha, the need for social re­
search on the psychologic, social and eco­
nomic effects of leprosy was stressed. The 
seminar was attended by specialists from 
Japan, the Philippines, Malaysia, Thailand, 
New Guinea, Australia, Korea, and India. 
( Front News from ALM, January 1968 ) 

F lImily pIa nil ing jJl'ogram at Schieffelin 
Leprosy Ccntcr. A family planning pro­
gram, instituted for female leprosy patients 
and others at Karigiri , is financed by the 
Christian Medical Association of India. The 
program has been well received and will be 
extended during the coming year. ( From 
News from ALM, December 1967 ) 

West Pakistan. Marie Adelaide Leprosy 
Center. The Marie Adelaide Leprosy Cen­
ter in Karachi has issued a report in which 
improvements made between 1956 and 
1967 are set forth in some detail. Condi­
tions were primitive in the former year, but 
by the latter year operations were thor­
oughly modernized. There has been a year­
ly increase in leprosy patients ; nearly 3,-
000 were registered in the Center in 1967. 
The percentage of patients with deformity 
has decreased notably. In 1966 almost 
equal numbers of tuberculoid, lepromatous 
and borderline cases were registered. 
Treatment, prevention , and training pro­
grams and other activities are described in 
the Report. 

Korea. Leprosy Research Institute. The 
Korean Leprosy Research Institute, for in­
vestigation directed toward eradication of 
leprosy, has been established in Taegu in 
association 'with the Kyungpook University 
Hospital , under the directorship of Prof. 
Soon Bong Suh. 



232 Tntenwtiol1al JOllrnal of L eJll'o ,sy 1!:l68 

Social and econolllic dislocation . In an 
article on leprosy control in Korea in the 
June issue of the Korean L eprosy Bulletin 
Dr. Dharmendra, of Chingleput, India, 
WHO leprosy consultant to the Republic of 
Korea, named the failure to reintegrate 
patients with arrested leprosy in the nor­
mal socia l and economic life of their com­
munities as the principal problem of lep­
rosy control in Korea. Half of the patients 
with arres ted disease a re able-bodied , with­
out deformity and able to do normal work. 
The other half have various degrees of 
deformity. A well-planned and concerted 
attempt to edu cate the public, using all 
methods of health education, is considered 
by Dr. Dharmendra as essentia l in solving 
the problem. ( From News from ALM , De­
cember 1967 ) 

Hong Kong. Rehabilitation Congress. 
The Fourth Pan-Pacific Rehabilitation Con­
gress will be held in I-lon g Kong, 1-7 Sep­
tember 1968. 

Tlmis. Leprologists' Association. An in­
ternational symposium on the detection, 
treatm ent and prophylaxis of leprosy, orga­
nized by the Society of Human Biology and 
Blood Transfusion of African Countries and 
the Near East, and held under the direc­
tion of Tunis University, 2.3-25 October 
1967, has established "The French Speak­
ing L eprologists' Associa tion ," the head 
office of which will be in Tunis. Its purpose 
is cooperation in leprology in the countries 
of French medical culture. A provisional 
committee under the presidency of Prof. 
Merklen has been set up , with Profs. Du­
perrat of Paris, Lechat of Brussels, and 
Scruppli of Basle as vice-presidents , Prof. 
Basset of Strasbourg and Medicin-Colonel 
Languillon of Bamako as general secre­
taries, Dr. Serie of Abidjan as assistant 
general secre tary, and Dr. Khalfat of Tunis 
as treasurer. A general meeting of the Asso­
ciation is projected at the time of the 
International Leprosy Conp;r('ss in T ,on don 
in Septemher 1968. 

Nigeria. Leproslj surgel'y cOllrse. A three­
week course in reconstructive surgery for a 
selected group of doctors and nurses in 
Northeastern Nigeria has been scheduled 
for F ebruary 1968 at the Adamawa Provin-

cial L eprosarium at Garkida, an institution 
supported by American L eprosy Missions . 
The course will be directed by Dr. A. J. 
Selvapandian of Vellore Christian Medical 
College, who is orthopedic consultant to 
ALM . There are 500 resident patients at 
Garkida, and almost 1,000 outpatients . Dr. 
Pfaltzgraff, direc tor of the leprosarium, also 
supervises the work of 160 government 
leprosy clinics. The Garkida treatment cen­
ter, supported by ALM , is under the super­
vision of the Church of the Brethren Mis­
sion. ( From News from ALM , January 
1968 ) 

Ethiopia. ALERT begins tra.ining rural 
leprosy workers. Trainirig courses for rmal 
leprosy workers from all over Africa were 
scheduled for initiation in F ebruary 1968 at 
the All Africa Leprosy Rehabilitation Cen­
ter ( ALERT ) in Addis Ababa. According 
to Dr. F elton Ross, clinical director of 
ALERT, the courses arranged in response 
to requests by African governments have 
been fully booked. Recent surveys in 
Kenya, Malawi; Tanzania, Uganda, and 
Zambia have disclosed special need for 
hand and foot care specialists. ( From News 
from ALM , D ecember 1967 ) 

Congo. Leprosy relwbilitation center. A 
leprosy rehabilitation center will be estab­
lished in the Ubangi area of the Congo by 
the Paul Carlson Foundation , founded in 
196,') in memory of the American medical 
missionary kill ed in the Stanleyville mas­
sacre of 24 March 1964. The Foundation 
has its headquarters in Chicago, Illinois, 
U .S.A. The new center will be based at th ~ 
Loko Hospital built in 1958 for the treat­
ment of tuberculosis and leprosy, but never 
put in opera tion . The plant, consisting of 
five central buildings, with 5,000 acres of 
land, was ceded to the Foundation by the 
Congolese Government in 1966. Opening of 
the center is forecast for early 1968, with 
Dr. Wallace D . Thornbloom of Chicago, a 
missionary in the Ubangi area for many 
years, as leprologist. Hehahilitatioll will bc 
stressed particula rl y in the Loko project. It 
is es timated that there are 10,000 leprosy 
sufferers in the Ubangi area , many of them 
in urgent need of physical therapy and 
reconstructive surgery. ( From News from 
ALM, D ecember 1967 ) 
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Malawi. Leprosy con lro l ce llter opened . 
On 31 August 1967 the Pres ident of 
Malawi, D r. H. Kamu zu Banda, and Minis­
ter of H ea lth, Mr. M. Q. Y. Chibambo, 
M.P. opened a new leprosy project control 
center in Blantyre. The building, consisting 
of two main blocks, with provision for ad­
ministration , trea tment and ancillary medi­
cal servi ces, provides ward accommodation 
for 36 patients. The blocks are connected 
with the Queen E lizabeth Central Hospi­
tal. The beds were endowed by the British 
Leprosy Relief Association. T he latter set 
the projec t up to demonstrate tha t leprosy 
can be cleared from an endemi c area effi ci­
ently and economically. Malawi was chosen 
as offering exceptionally favorable condi­
tions for the projec t; it is es timated that 

15,000 leprosy sufferers live within a com­
pact and reasonably accessible area. Three 
mobile teams carry out trea tment; a four th 
undertakes case-finding, tracing of con­
tacts, and BCG prophylaxis for contacts 
under 20 years of age. Thus far 2,000 new 
cases of leprosy have been found, and more 
than 5,000 patients are under h'ea tment in 
their villages. Among 5,000 contac ts a lep­
rosy inciuence of 2.5 per cent has been 
found; about 4,000 contacts have received 
BCG. The lepromatous rate is 30 per cent 
in the Zom'ba area and 20-25 per cent in 
Mlanje and Blantyre. Dr. B. D. Molesworth 
is permanent director of the project. ( From 
Henry Mowschenson, M. D. Lepra project 
control center opened in Blantyre. Central 
A fri can J. Med . 13 ( 1967) 268-269 ) 

PERSONALS 

Dr. Merlin L. Brubaker, formerly Medi­
cal Officer in Charge of the U.S. Public 
H ealth Service Hospital for leprosy pa­
tients at Carville, Louisiana, U.S.A. , has 
been appointed by the Surgeon General of 
the Public Health Servi ce as the PHS direc_ 
tor of a new program in the PHS designed 
to produce superior health profess ionals for 
community health programs. He took over 
his new position on 15 January 1968. 

Dr. C. G. S. lyeI', who was appointed 
Head of the Division of Laboratories of the 
Central Leprosy Teaching and Research 
Institute at Chingleput, South India, in 
1961, became Director of the Institute on 5 

October 1967. Since assuming charge as 
Director he has also headed the Clinical 
Division of the Institute. Previously, Dr. 
Iyer, who gradua ted in medicine at the 
Seth G. S. Medical College, Bombay, had 
been employed by the Indian Council of 
Medical Research as Research Officer in 
the Neuropathology Unit loca ted at the 
Indian Cancer Research Centre . In 1950 he 
received a fellowship from the Interna­
tional Health Division of the Rockefeller 
Foundation for training in neuropathology 
at the Harvard Medical School Neurology 
Unit, Boston Ci ty Hospital, Boston, for the 
period November 1950 to October 1951. 

Death of Dr. J. Ross Innes 

D r. J. Ross Innes, Secretary-Treasurer of the International Leprosy Associa­
tion from 1958 to 1966 and Editor of Leprosy Review from 1957 to the time of 
his death , died on 2 May 1968. An obituary of Dr. Innes, noting his many 
contributions to antileprosy work and leprosy research, will appear in the next 
issue of THE JOURNAL. 


